
Amendment  #002 
Request for Proposal (RFP) – CIC 146327 

 
Model Projects and Research Studies – Syrian Refugees Integration 

 
Amendment 002 is raised to: 
 
- extend the solicitation period from November 8th, 2016 to November 15th, 2016.  
- answer questions # 8 to 28 received from potential bidders as part of the solicitation process.  
 
1. At page 1. (cover page) of the Request for Proposal (RFP) 
 
DELETE:  
 
Sollicitation Closes – L’invitation prend fin at – à  
2:00 PM  
on – November 8, 2016  
 
INSERT: 
 
Sollicitation Closes – L’invitation prend fin at – à  
2:00 PM  
on – November 15, 2016  
 
 
2. Questions and Answers (#8 to #28) 
 
Q8. In regards to Model projects and research studies – Syrian Refugees integration, would you please 
confirm that proponents for Stream II can propose budgets up to $30,000 and that taxes will be paid 
above that amount?  In other words, we do not have to leave financial room in the “Firm price” to pay for 
taxes.  Is that correct? 

A8. Yes, that is correct. The applicable taxes are extra (not included in the stipulated budget).  

 
Q9. Can an extension of 2 to 3 weeks be provided for this RFP response to be submitted? 

A9. The solicitation period has been extended to November 15th, 2016. 

 
Q10. Does the Canadian government have data on the total 30,000 Syrian refugee composite? To 
understand the specifics of the Syrian refugee population to be served in the RFP, we ask the below 
questions so that targeted research and proposed programs will be relevant for recently resettled Syrians 
as well as new Syria arrivals moving forward with the Canadian refugee resettlement.  
 

Case History  
 

 What percentage of Syrian refugees through July 2016 were ‘Women at Risk?’ 
 What percentage of the cases were ‘Unaccompanied Refugee Minors?’ 
 Are ‘Syrian Refugee Youth’ referred to in the RFP arriving with a parent, a 

relative or as Unaccompanied Refugee Minors? 
 Through July 2016, do Syrian refugees have similar reasons for fleeing Syria? 

For example, are they fleeing due to religious, political, ethnic or other reasons? 



Or have the refugees fled (in general) due to an unstable and insecure Syrian 
environment? 

 Is data available on the level/type of trauma experienced by the Syria refugees? 
If data is available, is it possible to understand the level of trauma in relation to 
vulnerable populations such as Women at Risk and Syrian Refugee Youth?  
 

Case Biographical Data  
 

 Have the refugees been arriving from urban, rural or other areas in Syria? 
 From what ethnic groups have the Syrian refugees come from? 
 What is the first language (mother tongue) of the Syrian refugees? (Arabic, 

Kurdish, other?)  
 What are the average ages of the Syrian refugees through July 2016?  
 What is the literacy rate for the Syrian refugees that have arrived through July 

2016? Are significant numbers illiterate in their native language?  
 What is the level of English Syrian refugees possess upon arrival to Canada? 
 What level of education have the Syria refugees achieved?   
 What types of employment background are the refugees coming from?  
 What is the current employment status of each of the refugees? 
 Which Syrian refugees are full time caregivers for their children and/or elderly 

parents?  
 
Networks 

• For research purposes, could access be granted to refugee private 
sponsors as well as the refugees themselves?  

• Are you able to provide locations and contact information for each of the 
Syrian refugees to facilitate gathering data and information as described 
in each of the research projects? 

  

A10. The statistics and data that Immigration, Refugees and Citizenship Canada provides on the 
Syrian Refugee cohort can be found at the following link: 

 http://www.cic.gc.ca/english/refugees/welcome/ 
  
Otherwise, we cannot provide any further statistics on the Syrian Refugee cohort.  

 
The Canadian Council for Refugees may have additional information and statistics on the Syrian 
Refugee cohort.  
 
http://ccrweb.ca/ 

 
We cannot provide personal information of Syrian refugees and private sponsors for privacy 
reasons.  However, you may partner with a local immigrant service provider organizations to 
deliver the project. 

 

Q11. Is it possible to visit clients in their homes or have community meeting, gatherings or events to 
engage with the Syrian refugees? (Participation might be higher if this type of organizational structure is 
utilized as refugees might have transportation, employment schedule or 

A11. The above listed activities are encouraged to maximize Syrian refugee participation. 

 

http://www.cic.gc.ca/english/refugees/welcome/
http://ccrweb.ca/


Q12. There seem to be inconsistencies on Page 4, 1.3 with respect to timelines. Can CIC clarify the 
timeline and expectations for this deliverable? 

A12. The purpose of Section 1.3 of PART 1 – General Information is to provide the bidders with an 
overview of the requirement. The Contract duration specified in this section is just an estimate 
and should not be interpreted as a firm deadline. The deadlines for each stream are specified in 
Appendix “D”, Statement of Work and in Appendix “C”, Terms of Payment.  

 
Q13. Would CIC consider extending the contract length, for different Streams as some streams will 
require various levels of effort to provide solid outcomes for such important research? 
 
A13. Unfortunately, the contract period cannot be extended for any streams.  All deliverables must 
be completed by March 31st, 2017. 
 
 
Q14. Based on page 52, what prototyping methodologies is CIC supporting?  

A14. CIC defines prototyping as testing a product or service that maybe be replicated or modified 
based on results of the tests. Rapid prototyping is a type of research that serves as a means to 
increasing confidence levels before making bigger investments. 
 
 
Q15.  For Stream I: Employment models/approaches for connecting unemployed Syrian refugees with 
employment, we have the following questions: 
 

a) Will CIC select the employers who will participate? Or will they identify suggested employers for 
the contractor to contact? If the contractor is responsible for finding them, what if none respond to 
the call? 

b) How many employers does CIC expect to participate in this project? If multiple employers are to 
be involved, should they be distributed among the 4 sectors identified in the Scope 
(manufacturing, hospitality, agriculture, and/or food processing)? Or would the CIC and/or 
contractor select just one employer for each of the two models? Are they identified? 

c) Page 53. CIC describes the four groups to be involved in the data collection. The descriptions of 
groups 2, 3, and 4 also refer to the groups as “this control group,” while it seems like the first one 
is the only control group. Can the Government clarify that only the first group is the control group? 

d) It seems that the Government wants to keep the experimental format within 20-24 Syrian 
refugees (group 3 and 4 pg 53). Should they be selected based on their particular skills or they 
are expected to be employed as non-skilled labor? If the first is true, should the employers who 
are designed to participate have a need for these particular skills?  

A15.  

a) CIC can suggest employers, however it will be the responsibility of the contractor to 
make contact and recruit the employers. 

b) Multiple employers are encouraged to participate (e.g. 3- 4 employers) in the project.  
The sector(s) chosen for the project is to the discretion of the contractor e.g.  labour 
market demand. The employers have not yet been identified. The contractor must find 
and recruit the employers.  

c) Yes, there is only one control group. The “traditional group” is not a control group. 
d) The selection of the Syrian refugees for this stream is at the discretion of the 

contractor.   
 



Q16.  For Stream II: Workplace Based Language Training (Informal language training), we have the 
following questions: 
 

a) How many employers does CIC expect to participate in this project?  
b) Are the communities of refugees to participate in this research identified by CIC or this is left to 

the contractor? Does a similar initiative already exist? 
c) How many employees should receive training at each employer? How many should participate in 

the post-training assessment? 
 

A16.  

a) The number of employers for this stream is at the discretion of the contractor. It is 
suggested to have at least two employers participate in the project.  

b) The contractor may decide which communities should participate in the project.  We are 
not aware of any similar initiatives. 

c) It is at the discretion of the contractor to decide on the number of Syrian refugee 
participants. It is recommended that a minimum of 20 Syrian refugees participate in the 
project. 
 

Q17. For Stream III: Study of pay-for-performance models to achieve better employment outcomes for 
Syrian refugees, we have the following questions: 
 

a) Does the Government already have good examples of pay-per-performance models? If yes, can 
the Government provide a list of employers who use it efficiently or with problems? 

b) CIC requires the contractor to perform detailed design criteria for a social finance model, 
including pay-per-performance models. Can the Government confirm that this stream is a desk 
study research about social financing and the pay-per-performance models, with the possibility of 
identifying potential partners in the process, including potential investors, intermediaries, etc.?  
 

A17. 
 

a) These details can be provided to the contractor once the contract is awarded.   These 
details are not required for the proposal.  

b) The contractor must conduct research and analysis and produce reports that provides 
detailed design criteria for a pay-for-performance model for Syrian refugee employment 
outcomes. The research would also highlight potential partners and capacity building 
support for both settlement and social finance and highlight the best role for the federal 
government and other levels of government as necessary. 

 
 
Q18. For Stream IV: Participatory research study with Syrian refugee youth on various topics, we have 
the following questions: 
 

a) The issue statement mentions “develop and test possible solutions,” but this is not mentioned in 
the Scope. Is testing solutions part of the Scope? And if so, is there a specific duration (i.e., 
number of weeks) that CIC would like the testing to take place? And is there is a specific 
expectation of the quantity of testing to be performed (i.e., number of human subjects)? 

b) Will research participants from the pool of refugee be compensated for their time? 

A18.  
 



a) The objective of this stream is to develop and test possible solutions to key issues that 
Syrian refugee youth face. The development and testing for this project need to be 
completed by March 31st, 2107. The number participants for the testing of the possible 
solutions is to the discretion of the contractor.  

b) CIC will not be compensating the participants for their time.   
 
 

Q19. For Stream V: Participatory research to study how to reduce social isolation for parents and 
caregivers who stay at home with their children, as well as isolated seniors, we have the following 
question:  
 

a) Will the Government provide a list of Syrian refugee parents, seniors and caregivers? 
 
A19.  
 

a) CIC cannot provide personal information relating to Syrian refugee parents, seniors and 
caregivers for privacy reasons.  However, you may partner with a local immigrant service 
provider organizations to deliver the project. 

 
 
Q20. For Stream VI: Research study on existing innovative practices to initiate discussions with Syrian 
families on issues including family violence and rights, gender equality, and sexual and gender diversity 
(LGBTQ), we have the following questions: 

a) What are the existing practices used to initiate discussions with Syrian families on the issues at 
scope? Will CIC provide the contractor with previous work and lessons learned in this area? 

b) Can the Government confirm that this research study involves just traditional interviews with 
community members, refugee associations and other key informants? 

c) After talking with key informants, is the contractor expected to validate the information with Syrian 
refugees? 

d) The CIC is requesting a minimum of six models from across Canada. Does CIC mean case 
studies of discussions with Syrian families on family violence and rights, gender equality, and 
sexual and gender diversity? 

 
A20.  

a) CIC has not been directly involved in any discussions or done any previous work in this 
area. 

b) The contractor must design a research methodology process that can include but is not 
limited to traditional interviews with community members, refugee associations and other 
key informants. 

c) The validation method is at the discretion of the contractor.    
d) For this stream CIC is looking for a scan, research and analysis of emerging and existing 

practices that initiate discussions with Syrian families on family issues including family 
violence and rights, gender equality, sexual and gender diversity (LGBTQ), and community 
supports. 
 
 

Q21. For Stream VII: Research study of mobilization of volunteers to support refugees, we have the 
following questions: 
 

a) Are there organizations in charge of the volunteers? Will the Government provide the list of 
organizations for the contractor to work with? 



b) In order to produce recommendations for 20 examples, the contractor will need to know how the 
volunteers are recruited, how they are organized and what their role is. Are these elements part 
of the research or will the Government offer past experience and existing studies? 

 
A21.  

 
a) When the contract is awarded, CIC can provide a list of potential organizations for the 

project. 
b) CIC has not conducted any past studies on the mobilization of volunteers. It will be up to 

the contractor to gather this information. 
 
 

Q22. Stream VIII: Research and prototype model of a mobile digital tool to support Syrian refugee 
settlement, we have the following questions: 
 

a) 5.8.1 states, “the prototype phase should test different models of the digital tool.” However, 5.8.3 
states, “the contractor must design and test a prototype of a digital mobile tool.” How many 
different models does CIC expect the contractor to develop and test? 

b) Can the Government confirm that the deliverable for Stream VIII is the prototype(s) and the final 
report showing the results of the test and not the digital tool itself? 

 
A22.  

 
a) To develop a prototype, it is expected that a few different models (or versions) of the 

digital tool with variations for design and functionalities could be compared. It is expected 
that two or more models (or versions) of the prototype are used to test and study for 
improved iterations with variations in design and functionality to respond to the needs of 
Syrian refugees.  

b) The final deliverable for Stream VIII is the prototype(s) and the final report, and not a 
finalized and implemented digital tool. As indicated in sections 5.8.3. and 5.8.4., the final 
report must include description of research methodology, key research findings and 
prototype results, and recommendations on an implementation phase. 

 
 
Q23. on Page 5 2.3 Enquires – state to submit questions to Contracting Authority but there is no name in 
the RFP or on the front cover only a phone number. Can you please provide the name?  
 
A23. All questions must be submitted in writing to the following email address: 
 
BRU@cic.gc.ca 
 
The contact information for the Contracting Authority will be provided at Contract award. 
 
 
Q24. Our question is in regard to 5.2 Stream II: Workplace Based Language Training (Informal language 
training), specifically 5.2.3, Scope. 
 

To develop an informal language training initiative for Syrian employees, is the proponent 
required to specifically identify potential employer partners and scenarios in the proposal?   

 
A24. The identification of potential employers and partners is encouraged, however it is not 
required at the proposal stage. 
 

mailto:BRU@cic.gc.ca


 
Q25. The question is in regard to the following statement: "The contractor, in cooperation with employers, 
should develop and deliver an informal language training initiative targeting the Syrian people."  

 
a) Must the entrepreneur himself find employers who will work in the project or CIC will present 

there a list of employers to join in this project? 
b) Can the entrepreneur to focus on the training of workers of a single region, for example, 

those in the Toronto area alone? 
 

A25.  
a) CIC can suggest employers, however it will the responsibility of the contractor to make 

initial contact and recruit the employers. 
 
b) The contractor may decide how many and which community (ies) should participate in the 

project. 
 

 
Q26. For Stream VIII, with regard to the following statement: "The contractor shall develop a research 
methodology and a prototype process that includes the collection of data and ideas from Syrian refugees, 
settlement service provider organizations, human and social service providers, and other key informants. 
" Should the Contractor identify the refugees to participate to develop the prototype or a list of refugees 
wishing to take part in the project will be presented to them by CIC? 
 
A26. CIC cannot provide personal information of Syrian refugees.  The contractor will have to find 
and recruit Syria refugees for the project. However, you may partner with a local immigrant 
service provider organizations to deliver the project. 
 
 
Q27. As mentioned on page 50 in the background section (point 3): 
 
"The Request for proposal does not apply to Quebec" 
 
Does that mean that an organisation based in Quebec, and having its offices in the province, cannot bid 
on the RFP? 
In other words, we are planning to conduct the research/model projects with the participation of Syrian 
refugees established in Quebec and/or the rest of Canada. Also, we would collaborate with other 
organisations established in Quebec, mainly NGOs. 
Therefore, do the projects need to be conducted outside of Quebec or can it be done in Quebec and then 
applied to other provinces? 
 
A27. The contractor can be located in Quebec, but the project or activities must take place outside 
of Quebec. Under the Canada-Quebec Accord, Quebec fully assumes responsibility for 
establishing immigration levels, and for the selection, francisation and integration of immigrants 
in the province. In areas under its responsibility, Quebec develops its own immigration programs, 
legislation and administration of its own immigrant integration policies.  
 
 
Q28. “The project must take place outside of Quebec”. Properly understood, but it may have contractor 
headquartered in Quebec? 
 
A28. The contractor can be located in Quebec, but the project or activities must take place outside 
of Quebec. 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 
 


